
 
CITY OF NEWPORT BEACH 
CITY ARTS COMMISSION AGENDA 
 
Newport Beach Central Library 
1000 Avocado Avenue, Newport Beach, CA 92660 
Wednesday, November 10, 2021 – 4:30 PM 
 

                       City Arts Commission Members: 
Arlene Greer, Chair  
Marie Little, Vice Chair 
Maureen Flanagan, Secretary 
Wayan Kaufman, Commissioner 
Leonard Simon, Commissioner 
Barbara George, Commissioner 
Meghan McNulty, Commissioner 

  
Staff Members: 

Tim Hetherton, Library Services Director 
Camille Escareal-Garcia, Cultural Arts Assistant 

 
 
The City Arts Commission meeting is subject to the Ralph M. Brown Act. Among other things, the Brown Act requires that the City Arts Commission 
agenda be posted at least seventy-two (72) hours in advance of each regular meeting and that the public be allowed to comment on agenda items 
before the Commission and items not on the agenda but are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the City Arts Commission. The Chair may 
limit public comments to a reasonable amount of time, generally three (3) minutes per person. 
 
The City of Newport Beach’s goal is to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) in all respects. If, as an attendee or a participant at 
this meeting, you will need special assistance beyond what is normally provided, we will attempt to accommodate you in every reasonable manner. 
Please contact Tim Hetherton, Library Services Director, at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting to inform us of your particular needs 
and to determine if accommodation is feasible at (949) 717-3801 or thetherton@newportbeachca.gov. 
 
NOTICE REGARDING PRESENTATIONS REQUIRING USE OF CITY EQUIPMENT 
Any presentation requiring the use of the City of Newport Beach’s equipment must be submitted to the Library Services Department 24 hours prior 
to the scheduled meeting. 

Page 1 

  
 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

II. ROLL CALL 

III. PRESENTATION 

1. 2021 STUDENT ART EXHIBITION AWARD CEREMONY 

Presentation of awards to the winners of the 2021 Student Art Exhibition in the Friends 
Meeting Room. 

IV. NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

The City provides a yellow sign-in card to assist in the preparation of the minutes. The completion of 
the card is not required in order to address the City Arts Commission. If the optional sign-in card has 
been completed, it should be placed in the tray provided. 

The City Arts Commission of Newport Beach welcomes and encourages community participation. 
Public comments are generally limited to three (3) minutes per person to allow everyone to speak. 

1



City Arts Commission Meeting 
November 10, 2021 

Page 2 

Written comments are encouraged as well. The City Arts Commission has the discretion to extend or 
shorten the time limit on agenda or non-agenda items. As a courtesy, please turn cell phones off or 
set them in the silent mode. 

V. PUBLIC COMMENTS

Public comments are invited on agenda items. Speakers must limit comments to three (3) minutes.
Before speaking, we invite, but do not require, you to state your name for the record. The City Arts
Commission has the discretion to extend or shorten the speakers’ time limit on agenda items, provided
the time limit adjustment is applied equally to all speakers. As a courtesy, please turn cell phones off
or set them in the silent mode.

VI. CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters listed under CONSENT CALENDAR are considered to be routine and will all be enacted
by one motion in the form listed below. City Arts Commissioners have received detailed staff reports
on each of the items recommending an action. There will be no separate discussion of these items
prior to the time the City Arts Commission votes on the motion unless members of the City Arts
Commission request specific items to be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for
separate action. Members of the public who wish to discuss a Consent Calendar item should come
forward to the lectern upon invitation by the Chair.

A. Approval of Minutes of the October 14, 2021, City Arts Commission Meeting

2. Draft of 10/14/2021 Minutes

B. Consent Calendar Items

3. Financial Report

Review of financial information.

4. Cultural Arts Activities

Monthly review of cultural arts activities from the Library Administrative Office for
upcoming Library and City arts events and services.

VII. CURRENT BUSINESS

A. Items for Review and Possible Action

5. Sculpture Exhibition Phase VII Selection Process and Public Survey Discussion

Nicholas Thurkettle of Arts OC will provide an overview of the selection process and
public survey, and answer questions regarding Phase VII of the Sculpture Exhibition.

2



City Arts Commission Meeting 
November 10, 2021 

Page 3  
 

   
 
 

6. Revision of the Timeline for the Cultural Arts Grants Completion Reports 

Staff requests that the City Arts Commission approve a timeline for Fiscal Year 2021-
2022 Cultural Arts Grants and approve a revised due date for the 2019-2020 and 2020-
2021 Grant Completion Reports. 

7. Assignment of Ad Hoc Subcommittees 

Chair Greer will appoint ad hoc subcommittees.  

B. Monthly Reports  

8. Newport Beach Arts Foundation Liaison Ad Hoc Subcommittee 

Commissioners Arlene Greer and Maureen Flanagan 

VIII. CITY ARTS COMMISSION ANNOUNCEMENTS OR MATTERS WHICH MEMBERS 
WOULD LIKE PLACED ON A FUTURE AGENDA FOR DISCUSSION, ACTION OR 
REPORT (NON-DISCUSSION ITEM) 

IX. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

Public comments are invited on non-agenda items generally considered to be within the subject matter 
jurisdiction of the City Arts Commission. Speakers must limit comments to three (3) minutes. Before 
speaking, we invite, but do not require, you to state your name for the record. The City Arts 
Commission has the discretion to extend or shorten the speakers’ time limit on agenda or non-agenda 
items, provided the time limit adjustment is applied equally to all speakers.  As a courtesy, please turn 
cell phones off or set them in the silent mode. 

X. ADJOURNMENT 

3



DRAFT 
Newport Beach City Arts Commission Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, October 14, 2021 
Regular Meeting – 5:00 PM 

Newport Beach Public Library – Small Conference Room 
1000 Avocado Avenue 

Newport Beach, CA 92660 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – 5:02 P.M.

II. ROLL CALL

Commissioners Present: Arlene Greer, Chair 
Marie Little, Vice Chair 
Maureen Flanagan, Secretary 
Wayan Kaufman, Commissioner 
Leonard Simon, Commissioner 
Barbara George, Commissioner 

Commissioners Absent: Meghan McNulty, Commissioner 

Staff Present: Tim Hetherton, Library Services Director 
Camille Escareal-Garcia, Cultural Arts Assistant 

III. NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT

None.

V. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. Approval of Minutes of the September 9, 2021, City Arts Commission Meeting

1. Draft of 9/9/2021 Minutes

Chair Greer called for revisions to the minutes.  

Secretary Flanagan stated she planned to abstain as she had been absent. 

Chair Greer requested revisions to Page 2, Handwritten page 5 (paragraph 3). 
Specifically, she requested that the first five lines be struck from the minutes leaving the 
sentence beginning with, “She asked if the minutes could be looked at more closely…” 
She also requested a revision on Page 3, Handwritten page 6 (3rd paragraph from bottom) 
to clarify that she asked all Commissioners to attend the Newport Beach Arts Foundation 
(NBAF) check presentation to the City Council on September 28, 2021.  

Motion made by Commissioner Simon, seconded by Vice Chair Little, and carried (5-0-1-
1) to approve the September 9, 2021, meeting minutes as amended.

AYES: Greer, Little, Kaufman, Simon, George 
NOES:  None 

4



Newport Beach City Arts Commission Meeting Minutes 
October 14, 2021 
Page 2 
 

ABSTENTIONS: Flanagan 
ABSENT:  McNulty 

 
B. Consent Calendar Items 
 

2. Financial Report – Review of financial information 
 

Library Services Director Tim Hetherton reported there were expenditures, but the City 
Arts Commission (CAC) has funds available for the Newport Beach Art Exhibition in Spring 
2022. The sound engineering for the final concert was more expensive as they needed to 
rent a generator, staging, and lights. Some of the professional service funds can be used 
for the Art Exhibition for Alan Scott or for a new vendor who can assist with the set up and 
staging of artwork for the exhibition. Staff is issuing refunds to people who registered for 
the postponed Art Exhibition. Overall, the finances are doing well.  
 
Commissioner Simon asked if there were any expenditures for the Shelley Rusk concert 
that were not listed. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton said the only other expenditure would be for 
marketing. 
 
Cultural Arts Assistant Camille Escareal-Garcia said that there were banners purchased 
to be displayed around the City, but there were no other expenses.  
 
Commissioner Simon confirmed there was no budget for security. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton said that they only need security guards when there 
is alcohol. Park Patrol will act as security. They also hired a day porter for the concert to 
clean restrooms.  
 
Commissioner Simon stated that after the Shelley Rusk concert the CAC would have just 
under $32,000 remaining in the current budget. 
 
Chair Greer said that the Newport Beach Art Exhibition had to come from that budget. She 
inquired about the possibility of throwing another concert in spring 2022. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton stated it was possible if the CAC had sufficient funds.  
 
Chair Greer indicated that the Newport Beach Art Exhibition would be at least $20,000 
and another concert would be about $7,500. She asked if Library Services Director 
Hetherton wanted to retain any funds. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton stated that was up to the CAC. 
 
Chair Greer noted that leftover funds were returned to the General Fund. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton said that sometimes program opportunities came up 
during the year, but that it was always good to have plans. If the CAC has funds remaining 
after the Art Exhibition they could be used for another concert. He advised the CAC to 
investigate and arrange the concert in January or February 2022.  

5



Newport Beach City Arts Commission Meeting Minutes 
October 14, 2021 
Page 3 
 

 
Chair Greer said that they had been running four concerts over the summer, but this year 
had been scaled back due to the pandemic.  
 
Library Services Director Hetherton noted that towards the end of the fiscal year it was 
more difficult to get checks cut. Therefore, he recommended contracting a performer well 
in advance of a potential June concert date.  
 
Chair Greer said the CAC did not have the awards charged against the programming 
budget for the Newport Beach Student Art Exhibition. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton explained that the gift cards had not been purchased 
for the winners.  
 
Chair Greer reminded Library Services Director Hetherton of the upcoming photo contest 
for the Sculpture Garden.   
 
Library Services Director Hetherton stated that would occur in the next Fiscal Year.  
 
Chair Greer said it was usually done in the Spring. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton explained that the last contest covered Phases V and 
VI. He suggested the next could be for Phases VI and VII. 
 
Chair Greer called for further comments, but there were none. 

 
3. Cultural Arts Activities – Monthly review of cultural arts activities from the 

Library Administrative Office for upcoming Library and City arts events and 
services 

 
Chair Greer called for the staff report. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton said that he would not report on the grand opening, 
the luncheon, and the Concert on the Green as they would be discussed later by the 
Commissioners. Council approved the Sculpture Exhibition in Civic Center Park. The 
Newport Beach Arts Foundation (NBAF) presented a check to the City Council to help pay 
the honorariums. Richard Ferncase’s work is still on display at the Library Gallery. The 
next event scheduled was for the weekend and was the Shelley Rusk Concert on the 
Balboa Peninsula. The cultural arts grant process will begin in November. 
 
Motion made by Secretary Flanagan, seconded by Commissioner Simon, and carried (6-
0-0-1) to approve the Consent Calendar as submitted by City staff with revisions to the 
minutes.  
 
AYES:   Greer, Little, Flanagan, Kaufman, Simon, George 
NOES:   None 
ABSTENTIONS: None 
ABSENT:  McNulty 

  

6



Newport Beach City Arts Commission Meeting Minutes 
October 14, 2021 
Page 4 
 

 
VI. CURRENT BUSINESS 

 
A. Items for Review and Possible Action 
 

4. Student Art Exhibition – Prize Winners – Staff recommends that the City 
Arts Commission approve the winning submissions for the 2021 Student Art 
Exhibition as selected by the ad hoc subcommittee. 

 
Chair Greer directed the City Arts Commission (CAC) to Page 20 of the packet and invited 
staff to give the report. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton said the quality of work submitted was excellent and 
the event was enjoyed by the public. Having work publicly displayed is a big deal to 
children and their families. Some of the work really stood apart and the pieces selected 
by the Ad Hoc Subcommittee were great. He commended Cultural Arts Assistant 
Escareal-Garcia’s work and thought the program was great. He noted the program was 
cost effective, provided a nice viewing experience for the public, and won the CAC many 
friends in the community. He recommended approval of the winners. 
 
Commissioner Simon said there were very many talented young people who participated 
in the Student Art Exhibition. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton agreed. 
 
Chair Greer called for a Motion, but then called for the public comment prior to the vote. 
 
Jim Mosher, Newport Beach resident, inquired if the winners had already been chosen. 
 
Chair Greer explained that the ad hoc subcommittee reviewed the art and voted on the 
winners in committee.  
 
Mr. Mosher said that some of the award names made him think of different artists than the 
ones being considered for the winners, but he understood that the winners had already 
been reviewed by the ad hoc subcommittee. 
 
Chair Greer asked if there was a comment on Bouquet of Roses or the photos. She asked 
if he had a copy and noted that some copies of the staff report were not in color.  

 
Chair Greer called for the vote. 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Simon, seconded by Commissioner Kaufman, and carried 
(6-0-0-1) to approve the winning submission for the 2021 Student Art Exhibition as 
selected by the ad hoc subcommittee.  

 
AYES:   Greer, Little, Flanagan, Kaufman, Simon, George 
NOES:   None 
ABSTENTIONS: None 
ABSENT:  McNulty 

7



Newport Beach City Arts Commission Meeting Minutes 
October 14, 2021 
Page 5 
 

Chair Greer asked Library Services Director Hetherton if the artwork was available in color 
when people download it from the City website.  
 
Library Services Director Hetherton speculated that the staff report may have been printed 
in black and white to save ink. He asked Mr. Mosher if he had the option to print in color.  
 
Cultural Arts Assistant Escareal-Garcia explained that she had printed the public copies 
in black and white but going forward, for events such as the Student Art Exhibition she 
would make sure that entries were printed in color. If the packet is downloaded from the 
City website, it is in full color. All entries are currently on the Cultural Arts website in 
slideshow form.  
 
Chair Greer suggested that the winning pieces be displayed in a binder in the Teen Corner 
at the Library. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton stated that they could be hung from a bulletin board 
or similar and that he would investigate it.  
 
Chair Greer thanked staff, specifically Cultural Arts Assistant Escareal-Garcia, for their 
work on the project. She loved the awards and how they referenced well known artists.  
 
Library Services Director Hetherton asked if the CAC had seen the certificates created by 
Cultural Arts Assistant Escareal-Garcia. 
 
Chair Greer indicated they had, and that they were impressive. She also thanked Vice 
Chair Little and Commissioner Kaufman for their work on the Student Art Exhibition. 
 
Commissioner Kaufman also acknowledged Cultural Arts Assistant Escareal-Garcia’s 
work and explained that it was a big deal for all the entrants to come with their families 
and see their art on display at the Library. The art was nicely displayed and enhanced the 
student’s work. If this were to be an annual contest, she recommended shifting the timing 
to fall solidly within the school year for increased participation.  
 
Chair Greer agreed. 
 
Commissioner Kaufman suggested the winter for the program and noted that would allow 
students time to create art with their art teachers.  
 
Chair Greer said that they wanted to time it so that when they present the awards the 
seniors who have applied for early admission to college could be included. She noted that 
should be considered in the timing when planning future Student Art Exhibitions. She 
asked Cultural Arts Assistant Escareal-Garcia to explain what would happen at the awards 
ceremony. 
 
Cultural Arts Assistant Escareal-Garcia explained that the awards ceremony would be 
held in the Friends Room right before the November CAC meeting. She will contact the 
winners and they will be invited to receive their certificates signed by Chair Greer and Vice 
Chair Little.  
 
Library Services Director Hetherton asked if the CAC wanted to review the certificates. 

8



Newport Beach City Arts Commission Meeting Minutes 
October 14, 2021 
Page 6 
 

Chair Greer asked that the certificates be passed around. Per Commissioner Simon’s 
suggestion, at the next Student Art Exhibition the CAC would see that the awards were 
announced when the artwork was exhibited so that the ribbons could be posted with the 
artwork.  
 
Commissioner Simon noted that the Laguna Beach Pageant of the Masters included a 
large exhibit of student art with ribbons. 
 
Commissioner Simon said that the program was a voice for the Library, the City, and the 
CAC. The program is a win-win. 
 
Chair Greer noted that the Newport Beach Art Exhibition used to allow teenagers to enter 
the exhibition when it was held at the old City Hall. Then it changed to 18 or over. She 
thanked the CAC for its comments.  

 
5. Sculpture Exhibition Phase VII Timeline and Selection Process Review – 

Staff will provide a review of the Phase VII project timeline and the new process 
for the selection of pieces, approved by the City Arts Commission at their 
August 2021 regular meeting, and by City Council on September 8, 2021. 
 

Chair Greer noted when the CAC voted at its August 2021 meeting the contract was 
different than the timeline and requested an update from Library Services Director 
Hetherton. The procedure for selecting pieces in Phase VII has slightly changed.  
 
Library Services Director Hetherton reported the timeline had changed because the 
situation changed. The main change is that the CAC and the curatorial panel will have an 
opportunity to see the pieces as they come in. At the December CAC meeting 
Commissioners will review all submissions and apply the four criteria. The criteria are 
artistic merit, durability, practicality, and site appropriateness. Pieces that do not meet the 
criteria will be rejected. Pieces the CAC approves will be included in the public survey. 
The public will select the 10 primary and 3 alternate pieces and that will go to City Council 
for final approval. The timeline spells everything out and is subject to change due to 
circumstances. Currently the timeline shows the grand opening and dedication for June 
11, 2022, but Council Chambers and the Civic Center Community Room are unavailable 
that day. The new date will either be the 18th or 25th. The timeline will change as work 
continues. Council is happy with the new plan and has always encouraged the CAC to get 
the public more involved with the project.  
 
Commissioner Kaufman loved the increased public participation. She voiced concern over 
vote flooding for a certain artist or artists, especially if the voters are not local. She asked 
how the public survey could be crafted to ensure votes were counted once.  
 
Library Services Director Hetherton explained that past surveys had allowed one vote per 
device. He thought that responses could be limited by zip code but indicated he needed 
to check with Arts Orange County (ArtsOC). In the past when people voted for a piece as 
part of the campaign they were generally out of the country. He noted several votes for a 
past phase from Ukraine. Any time the City utilizes a survey they have issues so he will 
work with Arts OC and report back to the CAC on other possible measures. Since they 
are encouraging out of area artists to submit, he was not sure if the voting should be limited 
to Newport Beach only, but he could investigate it.  

9



Newport Beach City Arts Commission Meeting Minutes 
October 14, 2021 
Page 7 
 

 
Commissioner Kaufman said that they are inviting people from everywhere to view the 
Sculpture Garden, but in terms of the survey she assumed they wanted only Newport 
Beach residents to respond. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton stated that was a CAC decision.  
 
Chair Greer indicated that a change was made to the procedure and that was the reason 
for the discussion. The people making the selections will not have all the information the 
CAC receives, such as the background information on the artist, how much work they 
have done before, and dimensions. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton confirmed that dimensions had never been a part of 
the public survey. He understood Chair Greer’s point and explained that the CAC has the 
information and can ensure that any piece placed in the public survey is acceptable. He 
also understood the CAC’s consternation at having the choice removed from its hands, 
but they would still see excellent work for consideration of the Sculpture Garden. The 
public will have a selection of pieces curated by the CAC. 
 
Chair Greer was concerned with the outcome of the public’s decision. The CAC will create 
the pool for the survey by eliminating sculptures under the four criteria. She wanted the 
Commissioners to understand the process. 
 
Vice Chair Little explained that because of the changes it is important that the CAC spend 
a lot of time reviewing the pieces and criteria. It is crucial that all Commissioners look at 
each piece because if the CAC does not make careful choices then unacceptable 
sculptures will be included in the public survey. She expected that there would only be a 
handful of members of the public that would review pieces in the same manner as the 
CAC. Members of the public should be able to vote on the pieces and the CAC must 
remember that the public has different criteria.  
 
Secretary Flanagan confirmed that the public would have access to the criteria.  
 
Chair Greer said the public would not use the CAC’s criteria. While the CAC will use the 
criteria to eliminate sculptures, the public survey is only indicative of what the public likes. 
Commissioners need to review the artist’s background and past work before the pieces 
go to the public survey, as sometimes the sculptures can be quite different in person than 
pictured. She provided an example of a piece that was photographed in light and noted 
that the Sculpture Garden is not lit. Commissioners must look acutely at what they 
eliminate to make sure that the CAC assists the public in its selection.  
 
Commissioner Simon explained that last year was his first year on the Commission. He 
inquired about the size of the pool selected. 
 
Chair Greer explained that there were 200 in Phase I.  
 
Commissioner Simon asked about how many met the four criteria.  
 
Chair Greer estimated that between 40 and 60 sculptures met the criteria.  
 

10



Newport Beach City Arts Commission Meeting Minutes 
October 14, 2021 
Page 8 
 

Commissioner Simon asked how many sculptures made it through the first cut based on 
the criteria. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton stated that almost everything met the four criteria with 
a few exceptions.  
 
Commissioner Simon stated that there would be a big pool. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton said that it could be, depending on the number of 
submissions. If there are a lot of good submissions it would be a good exhibition. They 
need at least 13 high quality pieces, and he was hopeful they would receive at least that. 
He spoke with Rick Stein with Arts OC who is ramping up the promotion of the event. 
Phase VI had the smallest number of submissions, around 50 or 60, but some good pieces 
were in the pool.  
 
Commissioner Simon said the CAC would review the submissions and rule out those that 
do not meet the four criteria and then the remaining pieces would be placed in the public 
survey. The public would then have an opportunity to vote. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton confirmed that was the process.  
 
Commissioner Simon said that the final selection was made by the public with no weight 
coming from the CAC. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton confirmed that was also correct.   
 
Commissioner Simon requested confirmation that the process could not be changed.  
 
Library Services Director Hetherton said that the suggestion for the change came from 
City Council and was approved by them.  
 
Chair Greer said that the City Council felt very strongly about the public input. In the past 
the public chose its favorite sculpture, but that may have been unrealistic. Perhaps the 
public should have been allowed to choose more. 
 
Commissioner Simon presented a hypothetical situation where 50 sculptures were 
acceptable under the four criteria. In the past the CAC then selected the 13. Now the 50 
will go to the public survey and the public will pick the 13. He asked if it was within the 
rules for the CAC to suggest 13 pieces for the public’s information. Then the public survey 
would ask if the public agreed or had other thoughts. That provided for an informed vote 
with guidance.  
 
Library Services Director Hetherton saw no problem with that suggestion. 
 
Vice Chair Little said that she and Chair Greer had discussed that idea. 
 
Chair Greer stated she had not believed that was an option because then the CAC would 
be trying to influence the public vote. 
 

11



Newport Beach City Arts Commission Meeting Minutes 
October 14, 2021 
Page 9 
 

Library Services Director Hetherton asked if she viewed that as an influence and noted 
that sometimes people might vote to the contrary on purpose. He indicated he would think 
about the subject further. If the CAC wants to rank the pieces, it could take considerable 
time at the next meeting. 
 
Chair Greer said it would be difficult just to review all the pieces. She also explained that 
there was no number of entries required to be placed in the public survey. The CAC can 
eliminate pieces that do not match the criteria. The process is evolving and has evolved 
since Phase I. 
 
Commissioner Simon said that evaluating the sculptures was difficult and took a lot of 
time.  
 
Vice Chair Little said the public would not take a lot of time to take their votes. 
 
Commissioner Simon said he was trying to put himself in the public’s shoes. Some people 
will make conscious and methodical choices while others will simply choose a few. 
Advising the public of the CAC’s top 13 selections is simply providing an informed opinion.  
 
Chair Greer asked if the CAC would have any influence on how the public survey was 
framed.  
 
Library Services Director Hetherton said that they were straying from the original intention. 
The expectation was not for the public to have a specialized knowledge of quality art. 
 
Vice Chair Lee said that the public was tasked with making the selections. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton noted that the public also paid for the Sculpture 
Exhibition.  
 
Chair Greer thought the Corona del Mar Resident’s Association would want to weigh in on 
the survey. In the past the CAC had been sensitive about which pieces were placed. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton noted that the Corona del Mar Resident’s Association 
generally wants short pieces selected.  
 
Secretary Flanagan asked how many people voted in the last phase. 
 
Chair Greer answered approximately 1,600.  
 
Commissioner Kaufman liked the philosophy of the new process but saw a potential issue. 
With the way the survey had been done in previous phases, a voter could only select a 
top 13 and would have had no way of telling how the pieces fit into the larger exhibition. 
With this new process, the public could select all stainless-steel pieces or all short pieces. 
If someone was investing time in the survey, they might feel they were not given a 
complete picture of the situation.  
 
Chair Greer thought it would be interesting to see what the public selected. She regretted 
that the public was not allowed to vote for more than just their favorite sculpture in the 
past, a point that Mr. Mosher had made several times in past meetings. Chair Greer stated 

12



Newport Beach City Arts Commission Meeting Minutes 
October 14, 2021 
Page 10 
 

that the CAC did not decide to limit the public to just one vote, and she asked Library 
Services Director Hetherton to explain how it had happened.  
 
Library Services Director Hetherton explained that the decision was made by ArtsOC and 
that he would speak with them. 
 
Chair Greer noted that she loved public input. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton said the CAC would be able to receive public input 
with the Phase VII public survey.  
 
Chair Greer then called for public comment. 
 
Jim Mosher, Newport Beach resident, commented on the timeline laid out by Library 
Services Director Hetherton. The CAC may need to provide further details about what it 
wants done at the December meeting and the public online survey, as none of that was 
specified by City Council. He agreed with Commissioner Simon that numerous choices 
would be unmanageable for the public and suggested the CAC only approve a reasonable 
number of choices for the public to vote on. He further suggested that the CAC could vote 
for their own favorites and provide that information to the public. Mr. Mosher questioned if 
the public would be asked to vote for their favorite piece, for 13 pieces altogether, or to 
rank their choices. If the choices could be randomized so that the public did not see them 
in the same order that would eliminate the bias in favor of the first 10 pieces shown. Based 
on the timeline the CAC must be able to provide Library Services Director Hetherton with 
direction at the November meeting.  
 
Chair Greer thanked Mr. Mosher. 
 
Commissioner Kaufman stated she was not sure that she was comfortable with 
Commissioner Simon’s suggestion to include the CAC’s ranking of pieces in the public 
survey. Instead, she suggested placing a star next to the CAC’s 13 choices. That would 
give the public the information to decide if they wanted to follow the CAC’s suggestions.  
 
Vice Chair Little stated that if the public knew how the CAC arrived at their selections then 
it would influence them, but people are influenced in other ways. The public would see 
that the CAC made its decisions based off different criteria. Many people will not be 
influenced by the CAC’s selections, they will simply vote as they wish. She appreciated 
Mr. Mosher’s suggestions.  

 
Chair Greer said it was too bad that the survey could not be set up to have people rank 
the work by categories, such as color or size. 
 
Commissioner Simon indicated that sounded difficult. 
 
Chair Greer said it was not possible. 
 
Commissioner Simon said that if the survey was presented in a random order with CAC 
selections starred, it was possible that people would not click through and view all the 
CAC selections. If people are told there were 13 CAC selections included, it might motivate 
people to review all the selections. What the CAC wants to achieve is to provide the public 

13



Newport Beach City Arts Commission Meeting Minutes 
October 14, 2021 
Page 11 
 

with a good sample that they can spend time on and consider. Commissioner Simon stated 
that randomizing the entries and indicating CAC selections might do that.  
 
Commissioner Flanagan thought that was a great idea.  
 
Commissioner Kaufman thought it was important not to overwhelm the public with too 
many options. 
 
Commissioner Simon said that if they received 50 submissions and edited them down to 
25 pieces—with 13 of those being indicated as CAC selections—he thought that was in 
the spirit of what the City Council requested they do.  
 
Vice Chair Little said that all Commissioners have received positive comments from 
people about the job the CAC has done thus far. There are many people who will be 
interested in the CAC’s selections.  
 
Chair Greer explained that with ArtsOC they could help write and frame the survey.   
 
Chair Greer said it was important for people to know that the sculptures will be in place for 
two years and how things have been done in the past. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton was fairly certain that ArtsOC puts that information 
into the preamble of the survey and stated he would ensure that they did.  
 
Commissioner Simon remembered that, when he first went through the process, it took 
him a few sittings to understand what he needed to do. When the survey is sent to the 
public, there should be six bullet points explaining what they need to do. If the Arts 
Commission really want residents to review the information thoroughly, then the 
information provided needs to be easy to read and understand.  
 
Chair Greer said that in order for the program to continue and be successful, the public 
needed to be set up to succeed.  
 
Library Services Director Hetherton thought that the CAC could select high quality pieces 
and generate public interest.  
 
Commissioner Simon stated that, during the pandemic, many companies utilized surveys 
which were often too long and time consuming. The public survey for the Sculpture 
Exhibition is a different kind of survey they are asking the public to participate in. 
 
Chair Greer indicated she was aware that a lot of work goes into the selection for Phase 
VII. To engage the public, there needs to be publicity for the CAC selection of sculptures 
and then the public survey. This process may lead to more public involvement at the next 
CAC meeting than in previous years. She asked how they would evaluate the pieces 
without taking excessive amounts of time. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton said that the public would be invited to comment 
before the selections were made, like in past phases.  

 

14



Newport Beach City Arts Commission Meeting Minutes 
October 14, 2021 
Page 12 
 

Library Services Director Hetherton thought that Vice Chair Little was correct when she 
told the CAC to do their homework. Rick Stein with Arts OC agreed to give the CAC access 
to the submissions in real time. Once they receive their login information, commissioners 
can begin their own review and keep their own scorecards.   
 
Chair Greer said they should be prepared to discuss each piece. In past phases, Rick 
Stein reviewed the pieces with foreign honorariums and removed those that were not 
feasible. She asked Library Services Director Hetherton for more clarity. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton thought that in the last phase, Phase VI, they did not 
accept any submissions from outside the continental United States. Pieces were 
eliminated later in the process after they were selected. Rick Stein or Joe Lewis with Arts 
OC would reach out to the artists and, upon learning that the honorarium was not sufficient 
or some other factor that would make the installation not feasible, would then move to an 
alternate selection. The 13 pieces selected by the public might have similar circumstances 
that require them to be pulled from consideration. The December meeting will run with 
Rick Stein presenting a piece, the CAC discussing the four criteria, and then moving on. 
If there are inquiries about the selection process made by artists, Rick Stein would handle 
it. 
 
Commissioner Simon asked about presenting the public’s selections to the City Council—
inquiring if the public would have input during the meeting or if public opinion was 
completed in the survey. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton said there was always public comment at Council 
Meetings. 
 
Commissioner Simon clarified that the public comment would not be as lengthy as in the 
past because they changed the methodology. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton said there generally was not a lot of public comment 
at the Council presentation. Rick Stein’s presentation includes a slideshow and a review 
of the selected pieces; Council is usually satisfied by this presentation. It could play out in 
a different manner, but that was not his experience in past phases.  
 

  

15



Newport Beach City Arts Commission Meeting Minutes 
October 14, 2021 
Page 13 
 

Chair Greer stated the best outcome is that the CAC loves the public choices. She asked 
the Commissioners to do their homework and noted that they would receive their link to 
SlideRoom, the website where artists would submit their applications, from ArtsOC shortly. 
Any questions regarding SlideRoom should be directed to ArtsOC. It is important that 
Commissioners review all entries with a grading scale 1 to 7. She called for further 
comment or questions, but there were none.  

 
6. Selection of a New Date for the 56th Annual Newport Beach Art 

Exhibition - The Newport Beach Art Exhibition Ad Hoc Subcommittee will 
recommend a new date for the 56th Annual Newport Beach Art Exhibition. 

 
Chair Greer wished to confirm that the Sculpture Garden Phase VII Grand Opening, 
originally scheduled for June 12th, may be moved to June 18th or 25th. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton stated that was correct.  
 
Chair Greer expressed concern that, if the Newport Beach Art Exhibition were to be held 
in May, that the Civic Center Community Room would only be available on the 7th and the 
14th. She asked if it was possible to make the date closer to the end of the month so that 
there would be a full 5 months for the call for artists.  
 
Library Services Director Hetherton said that the Civic Center Community Room was 
booked for the 21st and 28th. He thought it was to the benefit of the staff because they have 
the Phase VII grand opening for the sculpture garden in June and a possible concert.  
 
Chair Greer asked if the Newport Beach Art Exhibition could be held in June. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton preferred that the event not be held in June due to the 
Phase VII grand opening. He thought it would help staff to have some separation between 
the events.  
 
Chair Greer wished to confirm that the 14th was the last possible date. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton confirmed that was correct. 
 
Chair Greer said the CAC should not sunset the Newport Beach Art Exhibition Ad Hoc 
Subcommittee. The old committee should meet since she had not appointed a new 
committee yet. Chair Greer requested that all Commissioners respond to her with their 
preferences for committee assignments. In order to successfully run the Newport Beach 
Art Exhibition, they need at least 5 months advance notice. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton said that the call for artists would begin in January. 
 
Chair Greer asked if they could announce the call for artists on December 1st. 
 
Commissioner Simon said that May was seven months away.  
 
Chair Greer said that six months would be November. The call for artists must close before 
May 14th. Usually, the call closes three weeks before, which would be April. That means 
the call would have to be announced in mid-November. She asked for staff’s opinion. 

16



Newport Beach City Arts Commission Meeting Minutes 
October 14, 2021 
Page 14 
 

 
Library Services Director Hetherton indicated staff could do anything. He thought six 
months prior to the date for the call was sufficient.  
 
Chair Greer said that they would end the call around April 20th. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton said it would end three weeks prior to the event. 
Opening the call only involves paying CaFE and promoting it.  
 
Chair Greer asked if they could utilize mailing lists to send invitations to artists to respond 
to the call for entries.  
 
Library Services Director Hetherton said his only concern with that idea is that many 
mailing lists do not share information with other organizations. The City could ask but 
might not receive an affirmative response. As the Library Services Director, he does not 
give out the Library or Cultural Arts mailing lists because participants did not sign up for 
their information to be shared.  
 
Chair Greer indicated that they may have to purchase the lists. Costa Mesa has an 
extensive list, and the work that is exhibited is of high quality. She has been to the 
Huntington Beach show many times and it’s a great show. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton said that whether a list was for sale or not would 
depend on the entity. Many mailing lists agree not to give out or sell subscriber information.  
 
Chair Greer asked if it was alright for her to ask her Huntington Beach contact for their list. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton thought so, but indicated he needed to check. 
 
Chair Greer said that a mailing list from Huntington Beach had shared before in 2015. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton said he would investigate the matter.  
 
Chair Greer said they did not want to have to postpone the event again because they did 
not have enough artists. The program must occur by the end of the 2021-2022 Fiscal Year 
(FY) or the funding would be lost.  
 
Vice Chair Little asked if Rick Stein would have more artists to contact.  
 
Chair Greer said that Arts OC holds Zoom Meetings with people from other cities’ arts 
organizations. She requested that Library Services Director Hetherton contact Rick Stein 
and ask if they could be involved in their next Zoom meeting, as it would be helpful to 
share information. 
 
Commissioner Simon said when the NBAF put together an exhibit there were a lot of artists 
there. He was sure there was a list they could share with the CAC. He also knew from 
experience that the Newport Beach Public Corporation for the Arts would pass along their 
call for artists.  
 

17



Newport Beach City Arts Commission Meeting Minutes 
October 14, 2021 
Page 15 
 

Chair Greer asked Commissioner Simon to facilitate that. She called for the public 
comment.  
 
 Jim Mosher, Newport Beach resident, stated that when people give their email addresses 
out, they do not want the organization sharing the information. However, that does not 
mean that the CAC could not ask other organizations to publicize items to their members. 
 
Chair Greer stated that was a very good idea and advised Library Services Director 
Hetherton that was what the CAC had done with Huntington Beach in 2015.  
 
Commissioner Simon said that most organizations do not share their lists, but if they share 
information with their members it accomplishes the same goal.  
 
Chair Greer stated that everything the CAC does should be under City policy. She called 
for questions prior to the Motion. The staff recommendation is for the latest possible date 
provided by the Newport Beach Art Exhibition Ad Hoc Subcommittee. She asked if the 
CAC agreed with the recommendation of May 14th, 2022. The call for artists will start as 
soon as possible.  
 
Motion made by Vice Chair Little, seconded by Commissioner Simon, and carried (6-0-0-
1) to recommend May 14, 2022, as the new date for the 56th Annual Newport Beach Art 
Exhibition, with the call for artists to start as soon as possible.  
 
AYES:   Greer, Little, Flanagan, Kaufman, Simon, George 
NOES:   None 
ABSTENTIONS: None 
ABSENT:  McNulty 
 

7. Cultural Arts Grants, Fiscal Year 2021-2022 – Staff will present an 
overview of the 2021-2022 Cultural Arts Grants program and will 
recommend a timeline. The City Arts Commission will also be asked to 
approve the due date of the 2019-2020 Grant Completion Report. 

 
Chair Greer called for the staff report. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton reported that the City did not have a completion due 
date for the 2019-2020 Cultural Arts Grants because of COVID-19 and cancelled 
programming. He suggested making the completion date for 2019-20 the same as the due 
date for the 2020-21 grants. Starting last year, the City moved the Cultural Art Grant 
process to the fall so that it could be done during the school year. The CAC did an excellent 
job in 2020 with a complete review. The ad hoc subcommittee will have three weeks to 
review the Grants and then staff will include it in the packet for the February 10th meeting. 
The item would then go to Council in February and the checks and award letters would 
then be sent.  
 
Chair Greer asked for the thoughts of the current ad hoc subcommittee, comprised of 
Commissioner Kaufman and Commissioner Simon.   
 

  

18



Newport Beach City Arts Commission Meeting Minutes 
October 14, 2021 
Page 16 
 

Commissioner Kaufman commented that in previous years, Grant recipients were invited 
to a check presentation. She suggested the CAC consider how to do that differently 
because it was a lot of staff time for a recipient to send someone to pick up the check. The 
CAC should consider what was best for the recipients and try to highlight the programs 
they are supporting in addition to highlighting the relationship between the City and the 
grantees. She suggested press releases and links on the City website to Grant programs. 
 
Commissioner Simon said Commissioner Kaufman’s suggestion made sense. The 
grantees need the publicity. Last year, all but one of the grantees attended the check 
presentation.  
 
Commissioner Kaufman did not know if recipients came out of obligation or because it 
was worthwhile for their organization.  
 
Commissioner Simon said that they also got publicity from their photograph in the paper. 
Additional publicity suggested by Commissioner Kaufman could be helpful.  
 
Chair Greer explained that in the past the City Council awarded the checks, but now City 
Council has given that responsibility back to the CAC. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton stated that the CAC could change how they wanted 
to handle the checks. In the past, they have given the organizations the option to receive 
the check by mail. Additionally, organizations have showed up and filled in their tax 
paperwork.  
 
Commissioner Kaufman noted that it is an after-hours event and a relatively small amount 
of money for some organizations. 
 
Commissioner Simon said it made sense to give organizations the option to attend.  
 
Chair Greer called for the public comment, but there was none.  
 
Motion made by Commissioner Simon, seconded by Chair Greer, and carried (6-0-0-1) to 
approve the timeline of the 2019-2020 Grant Completion Report.  
 
AYES:   Greer, Little, Flanagan, Kaufman, Simon, George 
NOES:   None 
ABSTENTIONS: None 
ABSENT:  McNulty 
 
B. Monthly Reports  
 

8. Newport Beach Arts Foundation Liaison – Commissioner Maureen 
Flanagan 

 
Secretary Flanagan reported that she did not attend the meeting but had read the minutes. 
The September 25th event at Bistango was lovely, but not as well attended as hoped.  
 

19



Newport Beach City Arts Commission Meeting Minutes 
October 14, 2021 
Page 17 
 

Chair Greer said that Diane Ghoukassian created a beautiful atmosphere. She suggested 
that next time Commissioners should invite friends and anyone else who would be 
interested in attending NBAF events.  
 
Secretary Flanagan reported the following updates regarding NBAF activities: they are 
looking to join the Newport Beach Chamber of Commerce and plan to award the Lila 
Crispin Scholarship. While they did not receive a grant from the California Arts Council, 
they have several fundraisers in the works. 
 
Chair Greer called for questions for Secretary Flanagan, but there were none. The next 
NBAF meeting was scheduled for October 19, 2021. 

 
9. Performing Arts for Balboa Peninsula Ad Hoc Subcommittee – 

Commissioners Arlene Greer and Marie Little   
 

Vice Chair Little reported that the Shelley Rusk concert at Marina Park was scheduled for 
October 17th. The concert goes from 4:00 to 5:30 p.m. Parking is not abundant, so she 
asked people to arrive early. The setup will be the same as for the Concerts on the Green. 
Food trucks will be available. 
 
Cultural Arts Assistant Escareal-Garcia said that one of the food trucks, The Coconut 
Truck, did not provide the necessary paperwork. Instead, Baby’s Badass Burgers and the 
Sugar and Spice food trucks would be there.   
 
Chair Greer encouraged attendance. She then stated she had a report on the Sculpture 
Garden opening day for Phases V and VI, held on September 18, 2021. Everyone who 
attended had a wonderful time and enjoyed honoring and meeting the artists. She listed 
the artists in attendance and the titles of their work. The event had a guest list of over 80 
people and included the Mayor, members of City Council, and the CAC. She commended 
Cultural Arts Assistant Escareal-Garcia and Library Services Director Hetherton’s work on 
the event. Press photos of the event are available online and via MBTV. 
 
Commissioner Simon mentioned that one of the sculptures from Phase VI, Birdman, was 
sold.  
 
Chair Greer asked if that was a result of the Sculpture Garden Exhibition. 
 
Commissioner Simon said he thought it was sold beforehand, but probably because it was 
installed in the sculpture garden. 
 
Chair Greer asked if they could do more publicity for the sculpture garden. She noted that 
they wanted to draw artists there and having art sold was a draw. She understood that 
one of the sculptures from a previous phase, Burnt Matchstick, was also sold. Huntington 
Beach liked it so much that they commissioned a sculpture from the artist. The CAC can 
raise the level of the art and the Sculpture Garden by publicizing the sale of art through 
the City exhibition.  
 
Commissioner Simon clarified that Chair Greer meant publicity to the art community and 
artists. 
 

20



Newport Beach City Arts Commission Meeting Minutes 
October 14, 2021 
Page 18 
 

Chair Greer said Birdman was by Steven Rieman and was beautiful. Rieman also donated 
Chairman of the Board to the City. She thanked Commissioner Simon for letting the CAC 
know of the sale. She concluded the report and indicated she wanted to report on the 
Santanaways concert held on the Civic Center Green on Sunday, September 26. She, 
Vice Chair Little, Cultural Arts Assistant Escareal-Garcia attended. Councilwoman Diane 
Dixon announced the band. It was a hugely successful concert with about 3,500 
attendees. Everyone had a great evening with a lot of dancing.  
 
Library Services Director Hetherton noted that a neighbor had high praise for staff and the 
vendor’s responsiveness to sound.  
 
Chair Greer thanked Library Services Director Hetherton, Cultural Arts Assistant Escareal-
Garcia, and Administrative Support Specialist Francine Jacome for their work. She asked 
for the public comment, but there were none.  

 
VII. CITY ARTS COMMISSION ANNOUNCEMENTS OR MATTERS WHICH MEMBERS 

WOULD LIKE PLACED ON A FUTURE AGENDA FOR DISCUSSION, ACTION OR 
REPORT (NON-DISCUSSION ITEM) 
 

• Announcements: None. 
 

• Future Agenda:  
° Ad hoc subcommittee assignments.  
° November or January meeting agenda will include forum with Newport 

Beach Arts Foundation (NBAF).   
 
Chair Greer reminded the CAC that all Commissioners are on the Sculpture Garden Phase 
VII and the Concerts on the Green ad hoc subcommittees.  

 
VIII. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

 
Jim Mosher, Newport Beach resident, stated that he had a question regarding the funding 
of the Sculpture Garden exhibit. The past two phases were funded by a State Grant which 
is ending soon and that Phase VII will be funded by the General Fund. He asked if the 
City had applied for or was pursuing further grant opportunities for the project.  
 
Chair Greer asked Library Services Director Hetherton to explain any opportunities for 
grant funding. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton said staff was always looking for grant funding. They 
tried to pursue a similar grant to what they received for Phases V and VII, but it is not 
available. That grant was special as the Governor gave the funds to the Assembly as a 
special budget for arts. The California Department of Parks & Recreation has a robust 
grant program; however, their grant program tends to target underserved communities. 
Newport Beach always looks for grant opportunities and will continue to do so for Phase 
VII. 
 

  

21



Newport Beach City Arts Commission Meeting Minutes 
October 14, 2021 
Page 19 
 

Chair Greer thanked Mr. Mosher and told him they are speaking with NBAF about grants. 
They are also looking into a plaque program for the Sculpture Garden, which would allow 
the CAC through the NBAF to partner locally with a business to sponsor sculptures. The 
price is yet to be determined. The CAC will need to fund the honorariums next year. There 
also could be increases in cost related to the Sculpture Garden. If they have notice of that 
before the budget is finalized, it would be good for the CAC to seek additional funding.  
 
Library Services Director Hetherton said the CAC could also change the number of pieces 
selected, the amount of the honorariums, and the frequency of the phases to better control 
the cost of the program. Until the NBAF can make regular gifts, the CAC will have to look 
for ways to fund the Sculpture Exhibition. He did not think 10 pieces on a two-year rotation 
was written in stone. The CAC may be able to make the Exhibition better with less pieces, 
larger honorariums, and longer display times.  
 
Chair Greer said they were considering three years for the display times for sculpture 
installations. 
 
Library Services Director Hetherton thought that would appeal to Council.  
 
Chair Greer thanked Library Services Director Hetherton and stated the item should go on 
a future agenda for November or January with the NBAF.  
 
ADJOURNMENT – 6:50 P.M. 

 
Chair Greer thanked the CAC and staff and adjourned the meeting at 6:50 p.m.  

 

22



As of October 31, 2021
ACCT NAME / # BUDGET DATE VENDOR EXPENSES BALANCE NOTES

Programming 60,500.00
01060603-841004 07/16 Sully Entertainment Group LLC 3,250.00 57,250.00 The Sully Band  (COTG)

07/31 Gotprint.com 161.22 57,088.78 COTG Banners
07/31 Gotprint.com 98.89 56,989.89 COTG rack cards
07/31 Gotprint.com 55.83 56,934.06 COTG banner (Balboa Bridge)
07/31 Gotprint.com 211.87 56,722.19 Sculpture Exhibition Ph. V/VI brochures

08/06 DJE Sound & Lighting Inc. 3,405.00 53,317.19 The Sully Band (COTG Sound)
08/06 DJE Sound & Lighting Inc. 3,405.00 49,912.19 DSB (COTG Sound)
08/06 JDC Integrated Inc. 3,250.00 46,662.19 DSB (COTG)
08/06 Office Depot 74.28 46,587.91 Student Art Exhibition Supplies
08/27 Office Depot 98.75 46,489.16 Student Art Exhibition Supplies
08/31 Gotprint.com 90.91 46,398.25 Sculpture Exhibition PH VI Banner
09/10 Benito Meschoulam 3,250.00 43,148.25 Santanaways (COTG)
09/10 DJE Sound & Lighting Inc. 3,405.00 39,743.25 Santanaways (COTG Sound)
09/24 Ocdamia Music Group 2,400.00 37,343.25 Shelley Rusk (Marina Park Concert)

09/24 DJE Sound & Lighting Inc. 5,498.38 31,844.87 Shelley Rusk (Sound)
09/30 Gotprint.com 104.09 31,740.78 Marina Park Concert Banners
09/30 Alliant Insurance (186.00) 31,926.78 Refund for NBAE insurance
10/08 Office Depot 9.29 31,917.49 Student Art Exhibition Supplies
10/15 Office Depot 29.51 31,887.98 Student Art Exhibition Certificates

TOTAL 31,887.98

Professional Services 22,390.00
01060603-811008 07/23 Alan Scott Art Inc. 357.50 22,032.50 Art Installation (Quilts on the Wall)

08/20 TAVD Visual Assistant 175.50 21,857.00 Transcription of Minutes (6/10)
08/20 TAVD Visual Assistant 209.25 21,647.75 Transcription of Minutes (7/08)
09/17 Alan Scott Art Inc. 302.50 21,345.25 Art Installation (Richard Ferncase)
09/17 TAVD Visual Assistant 191.25 21,154.00 Transcription of Minutes (08/12)
09/24 William McClelland Ent. 894.00 20,260.00 Bronze Sculpture restoration
09/24 Crown Building Services 825.00 19,435.00 Ben Carlson & Sphere 112 cleaning
10/15 TAVD Visual Assistant 168.75 19,266.25 Transcription of Minutes (09/09)
10/15 Universal Building Maintenance 300.00 18,966.25 Shelley Rusk - Concert Maintenance

TOTAL 18,966.25

City Grants 30,000.00
01060603-821006 30,000.00

TOTAL 30,000.00

Sculpture Garden 135,000.00
01060603-811059 135,000.00

TOTAL 135,000.00

FY 2021-22Cultural Arts Division

11/02/2021 1 of 2 23



TO Newport Beach City Arts Commission 

FROM: Library Services Department 
Tim Hetherton, Library Services Director 
949-717-3810, thetherton@newportbeachca.gov

PREPARED BY: Tim Hetherton 

TITLE: Cultural Arts Activities for October 2021 

CONCERT AT MARINA PARK – SHELLEY RUSK 
On Sunday, October 17, 250 residents and guests attended the annual Concert at Marina Park, featuring 
singer/pianist Shelley Rusk performing a selection of Broadway show tunes. 

CENTRAL LIBRARY EXHIBITS 

Sunny H. Kim  
Cosmic Dreams  
November 5, 2021 – January 7, 2022 

The City Arts Commission is pleased to present the works of artist Sunny 
Kim, whose acrylic paintings draw upon images of the vast universe, the 
heavens, and the meaning of what lies beyond the boundaries of the 
physical world in the spiritual realm. “The beauty of the Universe extends 
far beyond what one sees in a photograph of the heavens,” explains Kim. 
“I try to capture the emotions associated with the vast 
incomprehensibility of the cosmos and the expanse of eternity: the 
perfect union of chaos and order.”  
Ms. Kim attended the Parsons 
School of Design in New York, as 

well as the Fashion Institute of Design and Merchandising in Los 
Angeles. She received her B.F.A. in Fine Arts at Seoul National 
University. She is the Museum Council President of the Orange 
County Museum of Art, a Board Member of the Visionaries of the 
Orange County Museum of Art, the Korean American Chamber of 
Commerce, and the Newport Beach Arts Foundation; and is the 
Executive Advisor for the Korean Fine Arts Association U.S.A. 
Headquarters.  

MEET THE ARTIST: on Saturday, November 13, from 2:00 to 4:00 p.m. in the Bamboo Courtyard at the 
Central Library, the Newport Beach Arts Foundation will host a reception for Sunny Kim. Refreshments 
will be provided. 

24



FUTURE CENTRAL LIBRARY GALLERY EXHIBITIONS: 

• Roxanne Sexauer (Woodcuts & Linocuts): January 10 - March 4 
• Lisa Fu (Watercolors): March 7 - May 6 
• Ann Apeles Brunning ("Flying Flowers", photography): May 9 - July 1 
• Rob Williams (Photography): July 5 - September 2 
• Shant Beudjekian (Acrylic): September 6 - November 4 
• Helen Polins-Jones (Watercolor Portraits): November 7 - January 6, 2023 

 

CULTURAL ARTS CALENDER OF EVENTS 

 November 29, 2021 (Monday) 
Cultural Arts Grants application period opens 
 

 Plein Air event; date to be determined (Spring 2022) 
 

 May 13 and 14, 2022 (Fri. and Sat.) 
Newport Beach Art Exhibition – Friday artwork drop-off; Exhibition on Saturday 
 

 June 1-10, 2022 
Sculpture Exhibition in Civic Center Park– Deinstallation of Phase V artworks – Installation of Phase 
VII artworks 
 

 June 9, 2022 (Thursday) 
Cultural Arts Grant check presentation 
 

 June 25, 2022 (Saturday) 
Sculpture Exhibition in Civic Center Park Grand Opening – Phase VII 
 

City Arts Commission meetings are held at 5 p.m. on the second Thursday of each month. 
 

25



TO Newport Beach City Arts Commission 

FROM: Library Services Department 
Tim Hetherton, Library Services Director 
949-717-3810, thetherton@newportbeachca.gov

PREPARED BY: Tim Hetherton 

TITLE: Sculpture Exhibition Phase VII Selection Process and Public Survey Discussion 

DISCUSSION: 

Nicholas Thurkettle of Arts OC will provide an overview of the selection process and public survey, and 
answer questions regarding Phase VII of the Sculpture Exhibition. 

NOTICING: 

This agenda item has been noticed according to the Brown Act (72 hours in advance of the meeting at 
which the City Arts Commission considers the item). 

26



TO Newport Beach City Arts Commission 

FROM: Library Services Department 
Tim Hetherton, Library Services Director 
949-717-3810, thetherton@newportbeachca.gov

PREPARED BY: Tim Hetherton 

TITLE: Revision of the Timeline for the Cultural Arts Grants Completion Reports 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends that the City Arts Commission: 

1. Approve a timeline for the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Cultural Arts Grants; and
2. Approve a due date of February 11, 2022 for the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 and 2020-2021 grant

completion reports. The February 11 due date is stipulated in the 2020-2021 contracts between
the City and the grantee.

BACKGROUND: 

City Council Policy 1-10, Financial Support for Culture and Arts (ATTACHMENT A), recognizes the 
importance of promoting culture and the arts within the City and establishes a Reserve Fund for Culture 
and Arts. For Fiscal Year 2021-2022, the sum of $30,000 has been budgeted for specific cultural or 
artistic planning or projects as approved by the City Council. The City Arts Commission has the 
responsibility to review all programs and requests for support from arts groups and make 
recommendations for funding to the City Council for final approval.  

Council Policy 1-10 defines arts groups as those involved in visual, musical, theatre, dance, crafts, 
performing and literary activities. The City Arts Commission considers the following in order of 
preference for granting support:  

1. Local arts groups located within the City of Newport Beach and offering programs to City
residents;
2. Regional arts groups located in Orange County and offering programs to City residents; and
3. Arts groups located in California and performing or offering programs to City residents.

Groups not offering programs or services to residents are not eligible for support from the City. 

DISCUSSION: 

In March 2020, in concurrence with the executive order issued by the Governor of the State of 
California, arts organizations that present public performances cancelled all programming to help curtail 
the further spread of COVID-19 in the community by restricting large gatherings. Many grantees stage 
programs in local schools, and other grantees had events scheduled for the spring of 2020, coinciding 
with the stay-at-home order. These organizations were unable to present programs and were unable to 
submit the required completion report, which was due on September 25, 2020.   

27



In June 2020, the Arts Commission approved a staff recommendation that funds granted for live 
performances in fiscal year 2019-2020 should be retained by grantees and used for their original intent, 
as recommended by the City Arts Commission, and approved by the City Council, when restrictions on 
public gatherings are ultimately lifted.   

At the November 2020 regular meeting, because of the difficulty staging programs in the COVID-19 
pandemic, the City Arts Commission approved the staff recommendation that completion reports for 
2019-2020 grantees should be due at a date to be determined.   

Since November 2020, most arts organizations have adapted in response to COVID-19 restrictions by 
either staging programs virtually or in a safe environment.   

Contracts between the City and the 2020-2021 grantees provided a completion date of February 11, 
2022. Consequently, staff recommends a due date of February 11, 2022 for both the 2019-2020 and 
2020-2021 completion reports.   

TIMELINE: 

The proposed timeline is as follows: 

11/29/21 Grants are publicized. 
02/11/22 2019/20 Cultural Arts Grant Completion Reports due, with grant funds spent or 

encumbered. 
02/11/22 2020/21 Cultural Arts Grant Completion Reports due, with grant funds spent or 

encumbered. 
02/11/22 2022/23 Cultural Arts Grant applications are due 
03/02/22 Subcommittee’s recommendation is submitted to staff for inclusion in the agenda 

packet 
03/10/22 Arts Commission approves grantees for recommendation to City Council 
03/22/22 Recommendations made to City Council 
05/09/22 Award letters and checks disseminated 
01/16/23 2022/23 Cultural Arts Grant Completion Reports due, with grant funds spent or 

encumbered. 

This timeline should give the ad hoc subcommittee ample time to evaluate and rate the grant 
applications in preparation for City Arts Commission final approval.        

NOTICING: 
This agenda item has been noticed according to the Brown Act (72 hours in advance of the meeting at 
which the City Arts Commission considers the item).  

ATTACHMENT A:  Council Policy I-10 

28



I-10
 

FINANCIAL SUPPORT FOR CULTURE AND ARTS 

The City Council hereby recognizes the importance of promoting culture and the 
arts within the City of Newport Beach. A number of individuals and groups have 
been organized with the express purpose of developing and promoting culture, 
theatre and the arts. 

The City would complement these efforts by establishing a Reserve Fund for 
Culture and Arts that can be used for a) developing a master plan for the 
promotion of culture and arts; b) acquiring land and/or the construction of 
facilities to promote culture and arts and; c) instituting other cultural promotion 
projects. 

The sum of $55,000 shall be provided each year for specific cultural or artistic planning, 
promotion and/or construction projects as approved by the City Council.  It is the 
policy of the City of Newport Beach that expenditures from the reserve fund should 
be matched equally by the community in the form of contributions and   donations. 

In regard to the City's role in financially sponsoring art and cultural events, the 
City Arts Commission shall review all programs and requests for support from arts 
groups. The Commission shall forward its recommendations for funding to the City 
Council for final approval. Any appropriation shall not exceed 50% of the Arts 
Commissions' annual budget. For the purpose of this policy, arts groups shall be 
defined as those involved in visual, musical, theatre, dance, crafts, performing and 
literary activities. 

The following priorities shall be considered by the Commission. The order of 
preference for granting support shall be as follows: 

A. Local arts groups located within the City and offering programs to City
residents;

B. Regional arts groups located in Orange County and offering programs to
City residents; and

C. Arts groups located in California and performing or offering programs to City
residents.

Groups not offering programs or services to local residents shall not be eligible 
for support from the City. 

29



I-10
 

History 

Adopted F-20 – 5-11-1981 (“Reserve Fund for Culture and Arts) 
Amended F-22 -  6-22-1981 
Adopted I-20 – 1-24-1983 (“Co-Sponsorship for Cultural Arts”) 
Amended F-20 – 11-14-1983 
Amended F-20 – 1-23-1984 
Amended F-20 – 3-28-1988 
Amended F-20 – 10-28-1991 
Created I-12 – 1-24-1994 (incorporating I-20 & F-20, renaming “Financial Support 

for Culture and Arts”) 
Amended I-12 – 5-8-2001 
Amended I-12 - 4-8-2003 (changed to I-10) 
Amended I-10 – 8-8-2017 

30



TO Newport Beach City Arts Commission 

FROM: Library Services Department 
Tim Hetherton, Library Services Director 
949-717-3810, thetherton@newportbeachca.gov

PREPARED BY: Tim Hetherton 

TITLE: Ad Hoc Subcommittee Appointments 

DISCUSSION: 

An ad hoc subcommittee is a temporary advisory committee, composed solely of less than a quorum of 
the City Arts Commission, that serves a limited or single purpose, that is not perpetual, and that will be 
dissolved once its specific task is completed. Ad hoc subcommittees are not required to meet in public, 
are not subject to the Brown Act, and their meeting schedule is not fixed by a legislative body. Unless all 
these requirements are satisfied, it is a standing committee and subject to the Brown Act. This means 
staff would post the committee’s agenda for the meeting, which would be held in public. 

The Chair of the City Arts Commission appoints ad hoc subcommittees to address a specific task and 
bring a recommendation to the entire City Arts Commission for approval in a public meeting.   

Per ARTICLE VII of the City Arts Commission by-laws, under the heading "Committees", the Chair 
appoints Ad Hoc Subcommittees of one or more members for a specific purpose as the business of the 
Commission may require from time to time. All members of the Commission are required to serve on an 
Ad Hoc Subcommittee and are required to attend meetings, participate, and fulfill the role and 
responsibility of an Ad Hoc Subcommittee member. The Committee is discharged upon completion of 
the purpose for which it was appointed and after its Chairman has had a final report to the Commission; 
all committees shall make a progress report to the Commission at each meeting. No committee shall 
have other than advisory power unless, by suitable action of the Commission, it is granted specific 
power to act. 

Chair Greer will appoint committees at the November meeting. 

NOTICING: 

This agenda item has been noticed according to the Brown Act (72 hours in advance of the meeting at 
which the City Arts Commission considers the item).  

31


	11-10-2021 CAC AGENDA
	2021-11-10 - CAC - VI.B.2. DRAFT OF 10-14-2021 MEETING MINUTES
	2021-11-10 - CAC - VI.B.3 FINANCIAL REPORT
	Arts Commission 

	2021-11-10 - CAC - VI.B.4. CULTURAL ARTS ACTIVITIES
	FUTURE CENTRAL LIBRARY GALLERY EXHIBITIONS:

	2021-11-10 - CAC - VII.A.5. SCULPTURE EXHIBITION PHASE VII DISCUSSION STAFF REPORT
	2021-11-10 - CAC - VII.A.6. 01 REVISION OF TIMELINE FOR THE CULTURAL ARTS GRANTS COMPLETION REPORTS
	2021-11-10 - CAC - VII.A.6. 02 REVISION OF TIMELINE FOR THE CULTURAL ARTS GRANTS COMPLETION REPORTS - ATTACHMENT A
	Adopted F-20 – 5-11-1981 (“Reserve Fund for Culture and Arts)
	Amended F-22 -  6-22-1981
	Adopted I-20 – 1-24-1983 (“Co-Sponsorship for Cultural Arts”)
	Amended F-20 – 11-14-1983
	Amended I-12 – 5-8-2001

	2021-11-10 - CAC - VII.A.7. ASSIGNMENT OF AD HOC SUBCOMMITTEES STAFF REPORT



